
  TOWN OF MILFORD 
Office of Community Development 

Planning • Zoning • Building Safety • Code Enforcement • Health 
Economic Development • Active Projects 

Administrative Review 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

April 14, 2023 

Zoning Board of Adjustment 

Terrey Dolan, Community Development Director 

Subject: Case #2023-02 689 North Main Street, LLC and Salt Creek Properties, LLC. for the property 
located at Tax Map 43, Lot 20-2. Variance Application 

The applicants are before the Board of Adjustment seeking a Variance from Milford Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, 
Sections 6.01.3.B.7 to allow the retail sale of petroleum products in the Groundwater Protection District on a property 
located in the Commercial and Limited Commercial Zoning Districts. In reviewing the files for this property, I offer 
the following comments: 

1. Existing Conditions:

a. The subject property is approximately two acres (87,120 sq. ft.) with approximately 324 feet of frontage on
South Street and 234 linear feet of frontage on Nathaniel Drive. The property is undeveloped with a
substantial forested area along the rear easter portion the property.

b. The property would be serviced by municipal water and sewer.

c. The subject property is primarily zoned Commercial with the remaining easterly portion falling in the
Integrated Commercial Industrial Zoning District. The property is situated within the Town’s southerly
commercial corridor and close proximity to the Route 101 bypass (1,500 linear feet). To the north, the subject
property abuts an existing commercial store, Electric Supply and undeveloped property.  To the east, the
property abuts undeveloped property and to the west, Kincaid Auto. To the south, the subject parcel abuts
undeveloped land across Nathaniel Drive and to the southwest, a single-family residence.

d. The property falls within the Level 1 Groundwater Protection District.  The purpose of the district is to
preserve, maintain, and protect from contamination existing and potential groundwater supply areas.

2. On March 9, 2023, the applicants appeared before the Milford Conservation Commission to present the
proposal and receive input and comments. The Conservation Commission tabled the discussion seeking
additional site information contained in the wetland permit.  Since that time, the Commission held site walk and
met to discuss application on April 13, 2023.  See attached Commission memorandum.

3. The applicant is seeking relief from Milford Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sections 6.01.3.B.7 to allow the retail
sale of petroleum products in the Groundwater Protection District. Although the Ordinance contains certain
exemptions the use/storage of liquid petroleum products, the retails sale of petroleum products and exceeding the
5,000 gallon aggregate tank capacity is prohibited in the Level I Groundwater Protection District. Thus, the
Applicant requires a Variance to permit such use.

4. The applicant has a filed a concurrent Special Exception Application (see Case #2023-01) from the Milford
Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sections 6.02.6.A and B to disturb approximately 2,299 square feet of wetlands
area and 7,202 square feet of wetland buffer area to allow the construction gas station store, pump stations, access
driveway and parking areas, and related stormwater water management structures.
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In addition to requiring a Special Exception and Variance, the project will also require approval by the Planning 
Board for a major site plan application, subdivision application (lot line adjustment) and local stormwater permit. 
It is recommended that the Board request formal input from the Planning Board.   

In addition to local permitting, the project will require both a Wetlands Permit and Alteration of Terrain Permit 
from NHDES 

5. As part of the Board deliberation, the applicant should be prepared to discuss the following: 

a. The applicant should explain what stormwater management design alternatives were considered to minimize 
the overall impact the Groundwater Protect District, the delineated wetland resource area, and buffer.  

b. The applicant should details what spill prevention control countermeasures will be place.  As a condition, it 
is recommended that the operator of the facility submit a spill prevention control countermeasures (SPCC) 
plan to be approved by both the Planning Board and the Fire Department. 

c. The applicant should explain how the project will ensure the continued protection of the Town’s 
groundwater and meet the Town’s Stormwater Ordinance. 

d. The applicant should demonstrate how the project will comply with the Zoning Ordinance, Section 6.01.2 
Performance Standards (relevant sub-sections). 
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 Aerial Photos of Subject Property: 
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March 31, 2023 
To: Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 
Re: Case # 2023-01,02,03  Rashid South Street Gas Station project 
 
Special Exception for Wetland and Buffer Impact  
 
Variance for Prohibited Use of a Gas Station located in the Groundwater Protection Area 
 
To the Board, 

The Conservation Commission met with the applicant at their March 9 2023 meeting and at the 
March 30 scheduled site visit, which was also attended by members of the Planning and Zoning 
Boards.  The MCC members have some questions and comments which are listed below.   

Criteria for Evaluation (ZO 6.02.7): 

1. The need for the impact.  The MCC does not think that this is the best use for the parcel. It 
is located in the Groundwater Protection Zone 1 in which the storage of petroleum products is 
prohibited. 

2. The plan is the least impact to the site.  The plan proposes two access points in order to 
maximize the number of pumps while efficiently directing large trucks around a small parcel. 
There does not appear to be any thought to reduce the number of pumps so that one 
entrance would be sufficient, thus avoiding the wetland located on the northwest corner of the 
parcel.  This gas station is not an appropriate location for this parcel, as it is located in the 
Groundwater Protection Zone 1, where underground petroleum storage units are prohibited. 

3. The impact on plants, fish and wildlife.  There is a small wetland which is 5% of the parcel.  
It is part of a potential wildlife corridor, as identified on the NH Wildlife Corridors Map 
produced by NH Fish and Game. Without a study, it is very difficult to state what the impact 
will be to wildlife moving across the landscape. Usually, wetlands are impacted by a crossing 
which often accommodates wildlife movement; not a complete fill, removing this natural 
resource from the landscape. Our observation at the site visit is that the landscape is 
‘directing’ wildlife towards the culvert that carries drainage across South Street into the 
wetland/open space on the west side of South Street. 

4. The impact on the quantity and quality of surface and ground water.  This parcel is 
located in the Groundwater Protection Area 1, which prohibits the storage of liquid petroleum 
products. The applicant cannot guarantee that there will not be an accidental release of 
petroleum products.  One of the criteria for determining a Groundwater Protection Area Level 
1 is how quickly a substance can move across and into the aquifer.    The Canton Fine Sandy 
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Loam (CaB) soil type found on this site is considered a well-drained soil, indicating that any 
spills will quickly infiltrate, making it harder to collect impacted soil. Using the data available 
on NH DES One Stop Mapper, the parcel is located approximately 370 feet from highly 
transmissible soils. 

5. The potential to cause or increase flooding, erosion or sedimentation.  Stormwater 
treatments are designed which will manage the stormwater for the site. However, the 
infiltration is being designed to handle the drainage from the adjacent property.  Should this 
require additional environmental study by a third party? 

6. The cumulative impact if all parties abutting this wetland or buffer were permitted to 
make equivalent alterations to the landscape.  Typically, wetlands are temporarily 
impacted and mitigation is provided with wildlife friendly structures.  This project requires the 
fill of the existing wetland. Essentially, removing a resource from the landscape. It is difficult to 
assess the damage to wildlife if every abutter were to fill the wetlands on their property, but it 
is hard to imagine that this would be beneficial for the wildlife using the landscape. 

7. The impact of the proposed project on the values and functions of the total wetland or 
wetland complex.  This project will remove the existing wetland from the landscape.  We 
cannot determine how important this wetland is to the wildlife moving across the landscape.  
It appears to be the only refuge on this parcel for animals heading downslope to the wetlands 
on the west side of South Street.  They are being ‘funneled’ towards the culvert from this 
wetland so that there is a safe passage under South Street.  Removal of the wetland will 
change movement patterns, which may not be beneficial. 

MCC questions/thoughts 

1. Please ask the applicant to demonstrate how the applicant attempted to avoid or minimize 
the impact.  What mitigation measures will be taken to provide any of the resources that are 
provided by this wetland?  What efforts were made to reduce the site size so that the wetland 
could remain? 

2. What is the proposed treatment for the invasives that are present on the property? 

3. How will the applicant demonstrate that the stormwater recharge meets Ambient 
Groundwater Quality Standards (Env-wm 1403.05)` 

4. The MCC members do not think that this is the appropriate use for this parcel.  Map43-20-2 is 
located in the Groundwater Protection Zone 1, which prohibits the storage of liquid petroleum 
products.  There are other uses for which this parcel could be used which would not require 
the filling of this wetland and would reduce the risk for a major impairment to the aquifer.   

The Milford Conservation Commission members do not support this application for the above stated 
use to build and operate a gas station and convenience store on a parcel located in the Groundwater 
Protection Area Level 1. 

 

Respectfully 

John Yule, Chair 
Milford Conservation Commission 
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